
Chair 
Linda Haugan 
 
Vice-Chair 
Maxwell Ohikhuare, M.D. 
 
Executive Director 
Karen E. Scott 
 

 

The agenda and supporting documents are available for review during regular business hours at First 5 San Bernardino,  
735 East Carnegie Drive, Suite 150, San Bernardino, California  92408. 
 
Interpreters for hearing impaired and Spanish speaking individuals will be made available with forty-eight hours notice. Please 
call Commission staff (909) 386-7706 to request the service. This location is handicapped accessible.   

 

       Commissioners 

Josie Gonzales 

Margaret Hill 

Ron Powell 

Paul Vargas 

Elliot Weinstein, M.D 

 

 

 

 

      www.first5sanbernardino.org 

 

     Agenda:  Children and Families Commission 11-2015 

735 East Carnegie Drive, Suite 150, San Bernardino, California  92408 

 

Meeting date, 
time, and place  

November 4, 2015 – 3:30 p.m. 
First 5 San Bernardino 
Commission Conference Center 

 
Pledge of 
Allegiance 

Chair or designee will lead the Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Conflict of 
Interest 
Disclosure 

Commission members shall review agenda item contractors, subcontractors, and 
agents, which may require member abstentions due to conflict of interest and 
financial interests.  
 
A Commission member with conflicts of interests shall state their conflict under the 
appropriate item.  A Commission member may not participate in or influence the 
decision on a contract for which their abstention has been recorded. 

 
Report Advisory Committee Report by Margaret Hill, Chair 

 
Report Executive Director’s Report by Karen E. Scott 

 

Consent Item 
The following consent item is expected to be routine and non-controversial and 
will be acted upon by the Commission at one time unless any Commissioner 
directs that the item be removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion. 

 
Item No. CONSENT 

1 Approve Minutes of October 21, 2015 Commission Meeting 
(Presenter: Ann M. Calkins, Executive Assistant, 252-4252) 

2 Approve Amended Minutes of September 2, 2015 
(Presenter: Ann M. Calkins, Executive Assistant, 252-4252) 

 
 

1

http://www.first5sanbernardino.org/


Agenda: Children and Families Commission 11-2015 
November 4, 2015 
Page 2 

The agenda and supporting documents are available for review during regular business hours at First 5 San Bernardino, 735 
East Carnegie Drive, Suite 150, San Bernardino, California  92408.  Interpreters for hearing impaired and Spanish speaking 
individuals will be made available with forty-eight hours notice. Please call Commission staff (909) 386-7706 to request the 
service. This location is handicapped accessible.   

Item No. DISCUSSION 

3 
Conduct Public Hearing of the Children and Families Commission for San 
Bernardino County Annual Report for Fiscal Year 2014-2015. 
(Presenter: Scott McGrath, Supervisor, 252-4259) 

4 
Conduct Public Hearing for the Children and Families Commission of San 
Bernardino County Annual Audit for Fiscal Year 2014-2015. 
(Presenter: Jennie Randolph, Accountant III, 252-4271) 

 
Item No. INFORMATION 

5 

Receive information regarding Phase 2 of the application for the First 5 IMPACT 
(Improve and Maximize Programs so All Children Thrive) Program, a First 5 
California Quality Rating and Improvement System (QRIS) collaborative and 
funding opportunity for Fiscal Years 2015-2016 through 2019-2020.   
(Presenter: Chrystina Smith-Rasshan, Staff Analyst II, 252-4267) 

  

 

Public Comment 
Persons wishing to address the Commission will be given up to three minutes and 
pursuant to Government Code 54954.2(a)(2) “no action or discussion will be 
undertaken by the Commission on any item NOT on the agenda.” 

 
Commissioner 
Roundtable 

Open to comments by the Commissioners 

 
Next Meetings at  
First 5 San 
Bernardino  

 

NO COMMISSION MEETING IN DECEMBER 
 

 
Mid-Year Program/Budget Workshop  
January 6, 2016 
1:00 p.m. – 3:00 p.m. 
 
Commission Meeting 
January 6, 2016 
3:30 p.m. – 5:00 p.m. 

 

2



 
 
 

CHILDREN AND FAMILIES COMMISSION 
for San Bernardino County 

AGENDA: November 4, 2015 
 

Subject:  Information Relative to Possible Conflict of Interest 
 
Instructions: Contractors, subcontractors, principals and agents are listed below for each applicable 
agenda item.  Commissioners are asked to review the items for possible conflicts of interest and to 
notify the Commission secretary prior to the Commission meeting of conflicts concerning items on 
the meeting’s agenda.  This procedure does not relieve the Commissioner of his or her obligations 
under the Political Reform Act. 
 
Background: The Political Reform Act of 1974 (Government Code section 87100 et. Seq.) prohibits 
public officials from making, participating in making or in any way attempting to use their official 
position to influence a governmental decision in which they have reason to know they have a 
“financial interest.”  Additionally, Government Code section 1090 et seq. prohibits public officers and 
employees from being financially interested in any contract made by them in their official capacity or 
by the board of which they are members.  A limited exception is allowed for County Children’s and 
Families Commissions.  (See Government Code section 1091.3) 
 
Item 
No. 

Agenda 
Item/Contractor 

Principals & Agents Subcontractors; 
Principals & Agents 

Commissioner 
Abstentions 

1 N/A N/A N/A  
2 N/A N/A N/A  
3 N/A N/A N/A  
4 N/A N/A N/A  
5 N/A N/A N/A  

 

3



                                                                          1 
 www.first5sanbernardino.org 

 

Minutes:  Children and Families Commission Meeting 

735 East Carnegie Drive, Suite 150, San Bernardino, California  92408 

 
Meeting Date, Time 
and Location  

October 21,  2015 
3:30 p.m. 
Chair Haugan called the meeting to order at 3:39 p.m. 

 
Pledge of 
Allegiance 

 The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Chair Haugan 

 
Special 
Presentation 

Children’s Assessment Center Update – Dr. Amy Young  
 

 

Conflict of Interest 
Disclosure 

Commission members shall review agenda item contractors, subcontractors, and 
agents, which may require member abstentions due to conflict of interest and 
financial interests.  
 
A Commission member with conflicts of interests shall state their conflict under the 
appropriate item.  A Commission member may not participate in or influence the 
decision on a contract for which their abstention has been recorded. 

 
Attendees Commissioners Present 

 Josie Gonzales 
 Linda Haugan 
 Dr. Margaret Hill 
 Maxwelll Ohikhuare, M.D. 
 Dr. Ron Powell 
 Paul Vargas 
 Elliot Weinstein, M.D. 

 
Staff Present 

 Karen E. Scott, Executive Director 
 Cindy Faulkner, Operations Manager  
 Ann M. Calkins, Executive Assistant 
 Debora Dickerson-Sims, Administrative Supervisor II 
 Staci Scranton, Supervising Office Assistant 
 Mary Jaquish, Supervisor 
 Scott McGrath, Supervisor 
 Sophie Akins, Commission Counsel 
 Mary Alvarez, Staff Analyst II 
 Chrystina Smith-Rasshan, Staff Analyst II 
 Leslie Fountain, Media Specialist II 

4

http://www.first5sanbernardino.org/


Minutes: Children and Families Commission 10-2015                                  1 
October 21, 2015 
Page 2 of 6 
 

 
Report –  
Margaret Hill 
Advisory 
Committee 
Chair 

The Full Advisory Committee met on August 20 – facilitated in part by Harder and Co.  
 
The Advisory Committee received updates from First 5 staff on the following:  
 

 Status of the First 5 California IMPACT funding;  
 Countywide Quality Rating Improvement System (QRIS);  
 Current Legislative and Policy issues; 
 Strategic Plan review and alignment; and 
 Current initiatives and programs funded for Fiscal Year 2015-2016. 

 
Early Learning, Child Health, and Research and Data Subcommittee members met in 
September and October.  They reviewed First 5 initiatives and discussed current 
services in the fields of early care and education and child wellness.  
 
Based on those discussions, preliminary considerations to formulate 
recommendations for future strategies from a “systems approach” will be presented 
for final feedback at the next Advisory Committee Meeting which is scheduled for 11:00 
a.m. on Thursday, October 22, 2015 at First 5. 

 
Report –  
Karen E. Scott 
Executive 
Director 

Sara Elizabeth was born to First 5 San Bernardino’s (F5SB) Staff Analyst Jeffrey 
Pontius and his wife on October 11, weighing 5 pounds. 9 ounces.  Family is doing 
well and Jeffrey is enjoying his paternity leave to get to know his new daughter.  
Congratulations to Jeffrey.  
 
Annual Audit  
As previously shared with the Commission, F5SB’s annual audit, which is due to the 
State Controller’s Office by November 1st, has been delayed due to new reporting 
requirements regarding pensions.  F5SB has received acknowledgement and 
approval from the SCO of a request for extension.   
 
The audit is currently being finalized and will be presented in public forum on 
November 4, hence the reason for another Commission meeting so close to this one.  
 
Reach Out and Read  
The collaborative spirit and leadership of Dr. Edward Curry, President Elect and Dr. 
Tomas Torices, Executive Director of the American Academy of Pediatrics, California 
Chapter has been extraordinary. 
 
F5SB and the American Academy of Pediatrics (AAP) have partnered to bring or 
expand an early literacy initiative to pediatric practices in San Bernardino County.  
 
Reach Out & Read® is a national program that distributes books and supportive tools 
and information through pediatricians to connect reading as a vital practice for quality 
early childhood development - increasing the child’s interaction and exposure to 
words.  
 
Once fully developed this initiative has the potential to reach nearly every child in our 
County.  The “captured audience” is parents bringing their child to a “well-baby check-
up.”  More than 75% of our children routinely complete these well baby checkups on 
a defined schedule: 6 months, 12 months, 18 months, etc. 
 

5



Minutes: Children and Families Commission 10-2015                                  1 
October 21, 2015 
Page 3 of 6 
 

Parents of children ages 5 and under will able to take prescribed books home to build 
their child’s library and early literacy capacity and parents will have easily understood 
tools to support their child’s learning.   
 
Data from Reach Out & Read® reports that parents served by the program are four 
times more likely to read aloud to their children and children served by the program 
score three to six months ahead of their non-Reach Out & Read peers on vocabulary 
tests. Currently, there are 612 Reach Out & Read programs in the State of California. 
 
To kick-off this initiative, in partnership with the AAP, F5SB will host an informational 
dinner for pediatricians, pediatric sub-specialists and pediatric medical representatives 
to introduce the Reach Out and Read program and gain commitment to participate 
from this local medical community.  
 
This event entitled ROAR & Explore the Possibilities! is scheduled for Thursday, 
November 5, 2015 at our F5SB office and is limited to the first 65 physicians that 
register.  An additional event targeting the High Desert region is being planned as well.   
 
The objectives of Reach Out and Read fold well into other “systems building” activities 
happening throughout the County such as First 5’s Talk.Read.Sing promotion, the 
Vision2Read campaign, the IREAD collaborative, (formerly First Book) and a host of 
possibilities through County libraries, Preschool Services, the Housing Authority, 
public schools, and early care and education settings embedded in our QRIS work.   
 

 
Changes to the 
Agenda 

Chair Haugan informed the Commission relating to Consent Agenda Item 3 that there 
were a few dollar amounts which needed correction.  A red-lined version of the item 
was presented to the Commission and they were informed the contracts were revised 
with the corrected figures. 

 

Consent 

A motion was made by Commissioner Ohikhuare and seconded by Commissioner 
Vargas to approve the Consent Items.  With the noted corrections to Consent Agenda 
Item 3 and without further comment or objection, motion carried by unanimous vote. 
 
 

 
Item No.  CONSENT  

1 Approve minutes of September 2, 2015 Commission Meeting 
(Presenter: Ann M. Calkins, Executive Assistant, 252-4252) 

2 Approve Commission Schedule for 2016 
(Presenter: Ann M. Calkins, Executive Assistant, 252-4252) 

6



Minutes: Children and Families Commission 10-2015                                  1 
October 21, 2015 
Page 4 of 6 
 

3 

1. Approve employment contracts between the County of San Bernardino and 
Children and Families Commission for existing classifications, updating benefit 
language, hourly rates, and establishing provisions for the three-year contract 
term of November 14, 2015 through November 13, 2018, with options to extend 
the term of the contracts for a maximum of three successive one-year periods at 
the discretion of the Assistant Executive Officer for Human Services, with the 
following: 
a. George G. Potts, Fiscal Assistant, for a total annual cost of $52,437 ($35,131 

Salary, $17,306 Benefits). 
b. Lucretia Dowdy, Office Specialist, for a total annual cost of $55,873 ($37,752 

Salary, $18,121 Benefits).  
c. Stacy Scranton, Supervising Office Assistant, for a total annual cost of 

$64,875  ($42,681  Salary, $22,194  Benefits). 
d. Willmar Gultom, Accountant II, for a total annual cost of $75,859 ($51,958 

Salary, $23,901 Benefits). 
e. Joong H. Kim, Accountant II, for a total annual cost of $87,702 ($60,070 

Salary, $27,632 Benefits). 
f. Leslie N. Fountain, Media Specialist II, for a total annual cost of $81,796  

($57,200  Salary, $24,596  Benefits). 
g. Mary Alvarez, Staff Analyst II, for a total annual cost of $101,249 ($71,302 

Salary, $29,947 Benefits). 
h. Delia Barreto, Staff Analyst II, for a total annual cost of $101,249 ($71,302 

Salary, $29,947 Benefits). 
i. Amanda N. Ferguson, Staff Analyst II, for a total annual cost of $83,320  

($58,676  Salary, $24,644  Benefits). 
j. William Kariuki, Staff Analyst II, for a total annual cost of $87,397  ($61,547  

Salary, $25,850  Benefits). 
k. Ruth A. Martinez, Staff Analyst II, for a total annual cost of $85,300  ($60,070  

Salary, $25,230  Benefits). 
l. Jeffrey Pontius, Staff Analyst II, for a total annual cost of $89,523 ($63,044 

Salary, $26,479 Benefits). 
m. Jennie L. Randolph, Accountant III, for a total annual cost of $81,224 

($57,200 Salary, $24,024 Benefits). 
n. Chrystina I. Smith-Rasshan, Staff Analyst II, for a total annual cost of $83,320 

($58,676 Salary, $24,644 Benefits). 
o. Ronnie S. Thomas, Staff Analyst II, for a total annual cost of $101,249 

($71,302 Salary, $29,947 Benefits). 
p. Mary Jaquish, Supervisor, for a total annual cost of $116,034 ($80,579 

Salary, $35,455 Benefits). 
q. Ronald S. McGrath, Supervisor, for a total annual cost of $102,675 ($71,302 

Salary, $31,373 Benefits). 
r. Debora Dickerson-Sims, Administrative Supervisor II, for a total annual cost 

of $132,491 ($88,920 Salary, $43,571 Benefits). 
s. Cindy Faulkner, Administrative Manager for a total annual cost of $144,938 

($100,651 Salary, $44,287 Benefits). 
2. Authorize the Assistant Executive Officer for Human Services to execute 

amendments to the contracts to extend the contract term for a maximum of three 
successive one-year periods on behalf of the County, subject to review by County 
Counsel. 

3. Direct the Assistant Executive Officer for Human Services to transmit all 
documents in relation to contract extensions to the Clerk of the Board within 30 
days of execution. 

(Presenter: Karen E. Scott, Executive Director, 252-4252) 

 

7



Minutes: Children and Families Commission 10-2015                                  1 
October 21, 2015 
Page 5 of 6 
 

Item No.  DISCUSSION 

4 

Approve Amendment to Contract SI022 A1 to increase amount from $275,000 to 
$368,750 for Fiscal Year 2015-2016 and extend contract period to cover Fiscal Years 
2016-2017 and 2017-2018 in the amount of $400,000 per year for systems support of 
the County 211 Information and Referral Services.   
(Presenter: Scott McGrath, Supervisor, 252-4254) 
 
Discussion 
Commissioner Gonzales asked if 211 had data available for review relating to 
measurable and deliverables.  Mr. McGrath answered yes, 211 has this information 
readily available and will share it with her.  Commissioner Gonzales stated she would 
like to formulate an outreach to cities so they can take part in and share the cost of 
disseminating this information. 
 
Public Comment 
None 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Hill and seconded by Commissioner Gonzales 
to approve Agenda Item 4.  Without further comment or objection, motion carried by 
unanimous vote. 

 

 
Item No.  INFORMATION 

5 

Receive Policy Platform proposal information relative to Children and Families 
Commission - First 5 San Bernardino that was submitted to the County of San 
Bernardino Legislative Unit for consideration in developing Fiscal Year 2015/16 Policy 
Platform. 
(Presenter: Karen E. Scott, Executive Director, 252-4252) 

6 

Receive Program Evaluation Summary for Fiscal Year 2014-2015, Service Activity 
Updates for Fiscal Year 2015-2016 and introduce Fiscal Year 2015-2016 AmeriCorps 
Team.  
(Presenter: Mary Alvarez, Staff Analyst II, 252-4258) 

  

 

Public Comment 
JT Visbal, President, CEO, Brighton Hill Academy; Dr. Pat Krizek, Rialto Unified 
School District 

 
Commissioner 
Roundtable 

None 

 
 
Adjournment 

Without further comment or objection, the meeting adjourned at 4:33 p.m. 

 
Next meeting at 
First 5 San 
Bernardino  

November 4, 2015 
3:30 p.m. to 5:00 p.m. 

 

8



Minutes: Children and Families Commission 10-2015                                  1 
October 21, 2015 
Page 6 of 6 
 
Attest  

 
 

Linda Haugan, Chair 
 
         

Ann M. Calkins, Commission Secretary 

 

9



 

                                                                            
21 

 
 www.first5sanbernardino.org 

 

Minutes:  Children and Families Commission Meeting 

735 East Carnegie Drive, Suite 150, San Bernardino, California  92408 

 
Meeting Date, Time 
and Location  

September 2, 2015 
3:30 p.m. 
Chair Haugan Vice Chair Ohikhuare called the meeting to order at 3:39 p.m. 

 
Pledge of 
Allegiance 

 The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Vice Chair Ohikhuare 

 
Special 
Presentation 

“Real Cost of Living” by Greg Bradbard, President and CEO, Inland Empire 
United Way 

 

Conflict of Interest 
Disclosure 

Commission members shall review agenda item contractors, subcontractors, and 
agents, which may require member abstentions due to conflict of interest and 
financial interests.  
 
A Commission member with conflicts of interests shall state their conflict under the 
appropriate item.  A Commission member may not participate in or influence the 
decision on a contract for which their abstention has been recorded.  

 
Attendees Commissioners Present 

 Josie Gonzales 
 Margaret Hill 
 Ron Powell 
 Maxwell Ohikhuare, M.D. 
 Paul Vargas 
 Elliot Weinstein, M.D. 

 
Staff Present 

 Karen E. Scott, Executive Director 
 Cindy Faulkner, Operations Manager  
 Ann M. Calkins, Executive Assistant 
 Debora Dickerson-Sims, Administrative Supervisor II 
 Staci Scranton, Supervising Office Assistant 
 Mary Jaquish, Supervisor 
 Scott McGrath, Supervisor 
 Sophie Akins, Commission Counsel 
 Mary Alvarez, Staff Analyst II 
 Chrystina Smith-Rasshan, Staff Analyst II 
 Leslie Fountain, Media Specialist II 
 William Kariuki, Staff Analyst II 

Formatted: Top:  0.31"

Formatted: Right, Indent: Left:  0.5"

10

http://www.first5sanbernardino.org/


Minutes: Children and Families Commission 09-2015                                  21 
September 2, 2015 
Page 2 of 6 
 

 
Report –  
Margaret Hill 
Advisory 
Committee 
Chair 

The Full Advisory Committee met on August 20 – facilitated in part by Harder and Co. 
Advisory Committee received updates from First 5 staff on the following:  
 
• Status of the First 5 California IMPACT funding;  
• Countywide Quality Rating Improvement System (QRIS);  
• Current Legislative and Policy issues; 
• Strategic Plan review and alignment; and 
• Current initiatives and programs funded for Fiscal Year 2015-2016. 
 
Early Learning, Child Health, and Research and Data Subcommittee members are 
scheduled to meet several times in the next few months.  They will review existing 
data, analyze gaps and services and identify federal, state and local funding for 
leveraging opportunities. The deadline for making recommendations and finalizing 
priorities is October 15.  
 
Next meeting is scheduled for 11:00 a.m. on October 22, 2015 at First 5. 

 
Report –  
Karen E. Scott 
Executive 
Director 

Commission Meeting 
The next regular Commission meeting is scheduled for October 21st.  The October 
meeting is held late in the month to accommodate the required presentation of the 
audit findings and the annual report.  The annual report must contain the expenditure 
figures from the audit. Both are due to the State of California by November 1st.   
 
For the Fiscal Year 2014-2015 audit there is a new accounting pronouncement that is 
required to be implemented called GASB 68.  GASB 68 requires entities to give more 
detail and to book the liability on pensions.  This is required of everyone.  There has 
been a delay in obtaining the required information from the County related to First 5’s  
pension amounts and status.  There is a possibility that the audit may not be completed 
for the October 21 Commission meeting.  The County is aware of the State deadline 
and is expediting the information as quickly as possible.  The auditors are also aware 
of the situation.  The consequence for the Commission for not getting the audit and 
annual report submitted to the State on time is a possible delay in receiving our next 
revenue allotment.  If a delay is unavoidable, Commissioners will be notified and staff 
will present both reports at the November 4 meeting. 
 
Legislative Updates 
While recently consulting with the County’s Director of Governmental and Legislative 
Affairs, Ms. Scott shared information with Commissioners related to concerns 
regarding SBX2 13 - a new tobacco measure recently introduced that does not contain 
backfill language.  Authors of such bills have previously discussed their intent and 
proposed content with First 5 CA or the First 5 Association and those proposals have 
always included backfill language for Prop 10 and the other tobacco tax funded 
programs.  
 
First 5 Association advocates have now informed Commissions that assurances have 
been received by the legislative leadership that the backfill WILL be in the new tobacco 
tax bill (Pan/Hernandez) if it moves forward.  First 5 California and the First 5 
Association are holding off on any position on the bill until the next revised version. 
  
Legislative leaders have stated that the $2 Tobacco Tax bill will not move forward until 
other Special Session bills have shown promise on the Assembly floor. 
The focus now is on three key bills that legislative leaders have identified as threshold 
tests for moving forward.  Over the next week, First 5 Advocates will be carefully 
tracking the following SBX 2 bills: 

11



Minutes: Children and Families Commission 09-2015                                  21 
September 2, 2015 
Page 3 of 6 
 

 SBX2 5 (Mark Leno)/ABX2 6 (Jim Cooper) – Adds e-cigarettes to existing 
tobacco products definition 

 SBX2 7 (Ed Hernandez)/ABX2 8 (Jim Wood) – Increases age of sale for 
tobacco products to 21 

 SBX2 9 (Mike McGuire)/ABX2 10 (Richard Bloom) – Allows local jurisdictions 
to tax tobacco 

 
Legislators will be looking to First 5 to reinforce support positions on these bills.  The 
ability to demonstrate interest of First 5’s to support these bills on tobacco/e-cigarette 
regulation and local control will directly impact the ability to engage on amendments 
to the tobacco tax bill.  In short, First 5 CA, First 5 Association and Commissions that 
are able are aiming to show a strong First 5 voice to demonstrate the power of the 
First 5 movement.  First 5 CA and the First 5 Association support the Regulation of E-
Cigarettes.  
 
First 5 Association does a wonderful job serving all Commissions in advocating for the 
Prop 10 program – for our children ages prenatal through age 5. 

 
The following fact sheets will be placed on the First 5 website: “The Time to Reinvest 
in the First 5 Years is Now” and “Investing in California’s Children”. 
 
Countywide Vision – Vision2Read 
The Countywide Vision Education Element Group, led by County Superintendent of 
Schools Ted Alejandre and CSUSB President Tomás Morales, has taken the lead in 
addressing the regional goal to partner with all sectors of the community to support 
the success of every child from cradle to career. This goal began with development of 
our “Cradle to Career Roadmap” that identifies key milestones in every child’s 
academic and social journey toward a career. 

 
The Education Element Group, with support from the other Vision Element Groups, 
has developed the Vision2Read initiative as a year-long campaign that will focus the 
entire community around importance of literacy and encourage us to ensure that  all of 
our children have the opportunity to become proficient readers. 
 
On Saturday, September 19, from 8 a.m. – 1 p.m., SBCSS and CSUSB will kick off 
the Vision2Read Initiative at its Annual Family Reading Rally at the College of 
Education.  We ask that you join us to promote literacy in our county and encourage 
teachers, parents, students and the community to attend the event.   
 
CA Children Need a Strong Early Learning Plan 
One of the most alarming statistics is the extent to which poverty impacts the growing 
number of children in the Southern California region. About a quarter of California’s 
children live within families without enough resources to make ends meet at a basic 
level.  First 5 recently received an inquiry from a concerned citizen about what the 
Commission is doing to support families living in tragic circumstances.  
 
Although First 5 programs and services are not “means-tested”, public assistance or 
necessarily geared to low-income, disadvantaged children and families, the fact of the 
matter and the data we collect indicates that the Commission’s investment serves just  
such children as the largest population.   
 
First 5 seeks to identify root causes of issues affecting children’s development and 
optimal well-being and apply evidenced-based solutions that generate positive 
outcomes.  Research suggests that poverty in the first few years of life may undermine 
brain development, adversely affect overall health status, and lead to both diminished 

12



Minutes: Children and Families Commission 09-2015                                  21 
September 2, 2015 
Page 4 of 6 
 

success in early elementary school grades, and lower chances of ever completing high 
school.  
 
Compared to their peers, children living in poverty are more likely to have physical 
health problems such as low birth weight or lead poisoning, and are also more likely 
to have behavioral and emotional problems.  
 
Children living in poverty also tend to exhibit cognitive difficulties, as shown in 
achievement test scores, and are less likely to complete basic education.  
 
First 5’s across the State, facing similar concerns, often strategize and share solutions 
to improve Child Outcomes.  The article in this month’s ED report is one such “share 
point” – the idea of developing a strong, state-wide comprehensive Early Learning 
Plan to benefit all children to include voluntary home visiting for new and expecting 
parents, universal developmental screening and interventions for infants and toddlers  
and establishing a statewide kindergarten readiness assessment tool to help us 
measure (and respond) whether children are equipped and ready to enter and 
succeed in school. This is the mantra and mission of First 5’s and our contribution to 
breaking the cycle of poverty.  It is refreshing to acknowledge that California State 
leaders are moving in the direction of making our children the State’s number one 
priority.  
 
Inland Empire United Way is a valuable partner in addressing the County’s poverty 
issues and serving as the resource and referral solution for families in need.  IEUW 
also shares a common goal of improving health and education for low income children 
and vulnerable families.  
 
Linda Haugan, Commission Chair and Ms. Scott have had the pleasure of working 
with Greg Bradbard through a collaborative association called Funder’s Alliance.    Mr. 
Bradbard shared his report “Struggling to Get By – The Real Cost Measure in 
California”.   Ms. Scott asked Mr. Bradbard to share highlights with the Commission 
as a special presentation at today’s Commission meeting.   
 
Talk. Read. Sing Messaging Campaign  
The “All Aboard the Reading Railroad” event is now the “Talk.Read.Sing Fest” and it 
will be held in Hesperia in October and in Redlands in November.  Page 3 of the ED 
report provides valuable information about early developmental screening including 
the American Academy of Pediatrics recommendations to address the 61% of 
surveyed children who are underscreened.  

 
Changes to the 
Agenda 

No changes 

 

Consent 

A motion was made by Commissioner Weinstein and seconded by Commissioner 
Gonzales to approve the Consent Item.  Without further comment or objection, motion 
carried by unanimous vote. 
 
 
 

 
Item No.  CONSENT  

1 Approve minutes of August 5, 2015 Commission Meeting 
(Presenter: Ann M. Calkins, Executive Assistant, 252-4252) 

13



Minutes: Children and Families Commission 09-2015                                  21 
September 2, 2015 
Page 5 of 6 
 

2 

1. Approve employment contracts between the County of San Bernardino, Children 
and Families Commission, for the three-year period of September 19, 2015 
through September 18, 2018, with options to extend the term of the contracts for 
a maximum of three successive one-year periods at the discretion of the Assistant 
Executive Officer for Human Services, with the following: 
a. Tammy Jacobe, Office Assistant II, for an annual cost of $41,340 ($27,560 

Salary, $13,780 Benefits). 
b. Walid Wahba, Accountant II, for an annual cost of $73,946 ($50,648 Salary, 

$23,298 Benefits). 
2. Direct the Assistant Executive Officer for Human Services to transmit all 

documents in relation to contract extensions to the Clerk of the Board within 30 
days of execution. 

(Presenter: Karen E. Scott, Executive Director, 252-4252) 

 
Item No.  DISCUSSION 

3 

Conduct Public Hearing of the Children and Families Commission for San Bernardino 
County’s Strategic Plan for Fiscal Years 2015-2020 to acknowledge minor revisions, 
which will be active for the remainder of Fiscal Year 2015-2016. 
(Presenter: Cindy Faulkner, Operations Manager, 252-4253) 
 
The Public Hearing was conducted.  No public comments were presented on this item. 

4 

Repeal of CFC SB 04-01 A3 Community Investments Policy.  
(Presenter: Karen E. Scott, Executive Director, 252-4252) 
 
Discussion 
None 
 
Public Comment 
None 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Hill and seconded by Commissioner Weinstein 
to approve Agenda Item 4.  Without further comment or objection, motion carried by 
unanimous vote. 

5 

Adopt Amendment No. 5 to CFC SB 04-04 Procurement Policy to provide clarity and 
align with procedures and practice. 
(Presenter: Karen E. Scott, Executive Director, 252-4252) 
 
Discussion 

None 
 
Public Comment 
None 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Vargas and seconded by Commissioner Hill to 
approve Agenda Item 5.  Without further comment or objection, motion carried by 
unanimous vote. 

 

 
Public Comment Dr. Pat Krizek, Rialto Unified School District 

 

14



Minutes: Children and Families Commission 09-2015                                  21 
September 2, 2015 
Page 6 of 6 
 

Commissioner 
Roundtable 

Commissioner Gonzales announced the Vision2Read kick-off is scheduled for 
Saturday, September 19th at Cal State San Bernardino.   The public was 
encouraged to attend and “tweet” about their favorite childhood book to promote the 
event. 

 
 
Adjournment 

Without further comment or objection, the meeting adjourned at 4:37 p.m. 

 
Next meeting at 
First 5 San 
Bernardino  

October 21, 2015 
3:30 p.m. to 5:00 p.m. 

 
Attest  

 
 

Dr. Maxwell Ohikhuare, Vice Chair 
 
         

Ann M. Calkins, Commission Secretary 

 

15



 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 3 
NOVEMBER 4, 2015  

Subject Annual Report for Fiscal Year 2014-2015 
Recommendations Conduct Public Hearing of the Children and Families Commission for San 

Bernardino County Annual Report for Fiscal Year 2014-2015. 
(Presenter: Scott McGrath, Supervisor, 252-4259) 

Financial Impact None 

Background 
Information 

The California Children and Families Act of 1998 (“Act”) was passed as Proposition 
10 by California voters in November 1998 and enacted by the State Legislature 
through California Health and Safety Code Sections 130100 -130155 and Revenue 
and Taxation Code Section 30131. 
 
Section 130150 of the Act requires every County Commission, on or before October 
31st of each year, to issue a written report on the implementation and performance 
of, their respective functions during the preceding fiscal year.” Section 130140 (a) 
(1) (G) additionally requires the County Commission to “conduct at least one public 
hearing prior to adopting any . . . report”. 
 
The 2014-2015 Annual Report has been compiled and includes number of children 
and families served, priorities, activities, program highlights and overall 
accomplishments. The report also includes program and fiscal information and an 
analysis of services delivered based on the State’s Desired Results Areas – 
Improved Family Functioning, Improved Child Development, Improved Health and 
Improved Systems of Care. 

Review Sophie Akins, Commission Counsel  
 

 

 

 

 

Report on Action as taken 

Action:  

Moved:  Second:   

In Favor:        

Opposed:        

Abstained:        

Comments:  

  

Witnessed:  

 

16



 

 

Fiscal Year 2014-2015 

Children and Families Served  

             

                                       

Attachment for Agenda Item 3 – Annual Report 2014-2015 
November 4, 2015 Commission Meeting 

 

0% 2%

13%

58%

1%

18%

5% 4%

Ethnicity of Children
Alaska
Native/American
Indian
Asian

Black/African
American

Hispanic/Latino

Pacific Islander

White

Multiracial

Total Number of Children: 30,191

0% 2%

12%

51%0%

16%

2%
17%

Ethnicity of Parents
Alaska Native/American Indian

Asian

Black/African American

Hispanic/Latino

Pacific Islander

White

Multiracial

Other/Unknown

Total Number of Parents:  44,678

 

27%

27%

35%

11%

Annual Expenditures for 
Direct Services 

Improved Family
Functioning

Improved Child
Development

Improved Health

Improved
Systems

Total Expenditures $23,358,818



 

 

 

 

 2014-2015 Annual Report Narratives 

 

First 5 San Bernardino aims to promote, support and enhance the health and early development 

of children prenatal through age five and their families and communities. This is accomplished 

through investments in the areas of health, family support and early education as well as 

support for systems improvement and capacity building efforts in the county of San Bernardino. 

Fiscal Year 2014-2015 yielded many notable accomplishments and positive outcomes for our 

youngest residents and their families. One of the most significant investments was 586 

participants in a family literacy initiative yielding increased parent perceptions of their abilities 

to actively support and enhance their children’s love for reading. Data from this initiative 

demonstrated that a significant number of parents who, prior to the program, rarely or never 

practiced important behaviors with their children such as reading together, following a reading 

(bedtime, etc.) routine, practicing the alphabet, singing songs and playing rhyming games began 

to practice these behaviors regularly as assessed through a standardized evaluation tool. 

Other highlights that took place in 2014-2015 were: 

 A comprehensive year round preschool experience for 984 children 

 Asthma stabilization and education provided to 327 children and their caregivers 

 Oral Health Screenings for 8,300 children and treatment provided to 1,300 children 

 Successful Literacy, Water Safety and Oral Health Campaigns 

 Developmental screenings provided to 4,834 children countywide 

 



 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 4 
NOVEMBER 4, 2015 

Subject Annual Audit for Fiscal Year 2014-2015 

Recommendations Conduct Public Hearing for the Children and Families Commission of San 
Bernardino County Annual Audit for Fiscal Year 2014-2015. 
(Presenter: Jennie Randolph, Accountant III, 252-4271) 

Financial Impact None 

Background 
Information 

The California Children and Families Act of 1998 (“Act”) was passed as Proposition 
10 by California voters in November 1998 and enacted by the State Legislature 
through California Health and Safety Code Sections 130100-130155 and Revenue 
and Taxation Code Section 30131. 
 
Section 130150 of the Act requires every County Commission, on or before October 
15 of each year, to “conduct an audit of, and issue a written report on the 
implementation and performance of, its functions during the preceding fiscal year.” 
Section 130140 (a) (1) (G) additionally requires the County Commission to “conduct 
at least one public hearing prior to adopting any annual audit …”. 
 
Due to the implementation of the new pension accounting and reporting 
requirements in Statement No. 68 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB 68), our Commission did not receive that information from San Bernardino 
County’s Auditor-Controller’s Office to incorporate and complete our financial 
statements by the deadline.  The Commission requested and received approval from 
the State Controller’s Office for an extension until November 6, 2015. 
 
Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co. LLP (VTD) conducted an audit of the First 5 San 
Bernardino Commission encapsulating all fiscal activity of the Commission for Fiscal 
Year 2014-15 and has developed an audit report as required by Section 130150. 
 
If applicable, audit findings will be presented which includes auditor’s 
recommendation and First 5 staff’s response to the findings. 

Review Sophie Akins, Commission Counsel  
 

 

 

 

Report on Action as taken 

Action:  

Moved:  Second:   

In Favor:        

Opposed:        

Abstained:        

Comments:  

  

Witnessed:  

 

19



 
    
 

AGENDA ITEM 5 
NOVEMBER 4, 2015 

Subject First 5 IMPACT Program – Funding Opportunity 
Recommendations Receive information regarding Phase 2 of the application for the First 5 IMPACT 

(Improve and Maximize Programs so All Children Thrive) Program, a First 5 
California Quality Rating and Improvement System (QRIS) collaborative and funding 
opportunity for Fiscal Years 2015-2016 through 2019-2020.   
(Presenter: Chrystina Smith-Rasshan, Staff Analyst II, 252-4267) 

Financial Impact None 

Background 
Information 

At the July 8, 2015 Commission meeting, specifics relating to the IMPACT program 
and its funding opportunity were presented and approval was received to submit a 
Letter of Intent (LOI) to participate in the First 5 IMPACT program. The LOI was 
submitted on July 13th. The next step requires completion of the application. 
 
The application is a two-phase process. Specifics about the Phase 1 application, 
which determines eligibility to “base-layer funding” was shared with the Commission 
on August 5, 2015. Potential base-layer funding for San Bernardino County is 
$2,241,758 over a five-year period with a complete QRIS plan and successful 
application. First 5 San Bernardino (F5SB) serves as the Lead Agency for the San 
Bernardino County QRIS Consortium. The Phase 1 application was completed and 
submitted in August 2015. On September 24, 2015, F5SB was notified by First 5 CA 
that the Phase 1 application had been approved via an Intent to Award notice. (See 
Attachment A)   
 
Phase 2 of the application is due December 11, 2015. Currently, there is no 
scheduled Commission meeting planned before the new year. Although no 
Commission approval is required of the application, F5SB staff would like to inform 
the Commission of the status of the Phase 2 application. 
 
Phase 2 of the application is referred to as the First 5 IMPACT High-Quality Action 
Plan – Implementation Step Layer Funding.  (See Form 3 – Action Plan Template – 
Attachment B). This Action Plan includes a description of how First 5 IMPACT funds 
will support the implementation of a local CA-QRIS.  This includes the Design and 
Systems Functions, Partnership Commitments, Local Governance and Strategic 
Financing.  
 
As the Lead Agency, F5SB together with the QRIS Consortium is finalizing that First 
5 IMPACT High-Quality Action Plan.  The San Bernardino County QRIS Consortium 
has committed to achieving the components included in Step 3 for both the Rating 
Matrix and Continuous Quality Improvement Pathways. (see page 9 of Attachment 
B) The Rating Matrix addresses such elements as Child Development and School 
Readiness through Child Observation, Developmental and Health Screenings as 
well as Teacher Qualifications, Effective Teacher Child Interactions, Optimal Early 
Learning Environments, including ratios and group size.  The Continuous Quality 
Improvement Pathways provides tools and resources to establish and meet goals 
related to School Readiness and Teacher Qualifications and also guides work 
related to Social-Emotional Development and Health, Nutrition and Physical Activity 

20



 
AGENDA ITEM 5 
NOVEMBER 4, 2015 
PAGE 2                                                                                                                                      
 
 

all to be included in a successful QRIS Implementation Plan.  In addition to the 
Action Plan, the Consortium is developing a Five-Year IMPACT budget along with 
establishing performance measures.  
 
With a successful IMPACT application, it is anticipated that F5SB will receive an 
estimated award of $3,205,839 over a five year period of time. Notification of an 
“Intent to Award” is scheduled for January 2016 with awards expected to be 
received beginning February 2016. 
 
First 5 IMPACT funding will be utilized as a leveraged resource to support quality 
improvement work through a system and mission developed and coordinated by the 
QRIS Consortium.  
 
This application is in support of F5SB’s Strategic Plan, SPA 2:  Systems and 
Networks wherein F5SB is providing leadership in the development of this QRIS – a 
system that supports children prenatal through age 5, and results in sustainable and 
collective impact.   

Review Sophie Akins, Commission Counsel  
 

 

 

 

Report on Action as taken 

Action:  

Moved:  Second:   

In Favor:        

Opposed:        

Abstained:        

Comments:  

  

Witnessed:  

 

21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39


	Agenda for November 4, 2015 - with linked attachments
	Minutes 10-21-15
	Minutes 09-02-15 red-lined version
	Agenda Item 3 Public Hearing, Annual Report 14-15
	Attachment for Annual Report 2014-2015 11-4-15 Commission Meeting
	Agenda Item 4 Public Hearing Annual Audit 2014-15
	Agenda Item 5 IMPACT Funding
	ATT A, Item 5
	ATT B, Item 5



